
Board of Directors
Regular Meeting Agenda

Tuesday, March 21, 2017, 7.00p
Jeanne Marie Gaulke Community Meeting Room

502 State St, Hood River
Sara Snyder President

I. Additions/deletions from the agenda (ACTION) Snyder

II. Actual or potential conflicts of interest Snyder

III. Consent agenda (ACTION) Snyder

i. Minutes from February 21, 2017 meeting
ii. Spanish language materials invoice

IV. Open forum for the general public Snyder

V. Reports 

i. Friends update Bureker

ii. Foundation update Schoppert

iii. February 2017 financial statements Fox

iv. Director's report Fox

VI. Previous business
i. Branch library update and discussion (ACTION) Fox

VII. New business
i. Provisional Library Card (ACTION) Fox

ii. Board Governance Policy revision (ACTION) Fox

iii. Technology Planning session Fox

iv. Janitorial contract addendum (ACTION) Fox

v. Parking reimbursement for library volunteers discussion Fox

vi. Library Director review questions Fox

VIII.Agenda items for next meeting                                                                                   Snyder

IX. Adjournment Snyder
_______________

Other matters may be discussed as deemed appropriate by the Board. If necessary, Executive 
Session may be held in accordance with the following. Bolded topics are scheduled for the current 
meeting's executive session.

ORS 192.660 (1) (d) Labor Negotiations
ORS 192.660 (1) (e) Property
ORS 192.660 (1) (h) Legal Rights
ORS 192.660 (1) (i) Personnel

The Board of Directors meets on the 3rd Tuesday each month from 7.00 to 9.00p in the Jeanne Marie 

Board meeting agenda [2017-03-21] 1



Gaulke Memorial Meeting Room at 502 State Street, Hood River, Oregon. Sign language 
interpretation for the hearing impaired is available if at least 48 hours notice is given.

Page 2

Board meeting agenda [2017-03-21] 2



Board of Directors
Regular Meeting, Supplementary

Tuesday, March 21, 2017, 7.00p
Jeanne Marie Gaulke Community Meeting Room

502 State St, Hood River
Sara Snyder President

Notes prepared by Library Director Rachael Fox

I. Additions/deletions from the agenda (ACTION) Snyder

II. Actual or potential conflicts of interest Snyder

III. Consent agenda (ACTION) Snyder

i. Minutes from February 21, 2017 meeting
         Attachment: 
       III.i. Minutes from February 21, 2017 meeting

ii. Spanish language materials invoice
Attachment: 
III.ii. Invoice Multicultural Books & Videos (MCBV)

Patty Lara-Martinez traveled to Guadalajara, Mexico, to attend the Guadalajara International
Book Fair last year. She purchased several thousand dollars worth of Spanish language 
adult and children’s materials published in and geared toward Mexican Spanish speakers. 
The total of the purchase is beyond my spending authority, so I ask for approve to pay the 
invoice. 

IV. Open forum for the general public Snyder

V. Reports 

i. Friends update Bureker
Attachment: 
V.i. Hood River Reads brochure

• The Friends of the Library are gearing up for the annual Hood River County Reads 
program. The will distribute over 500 copies of Ordinary Grace by William Kent Krueger to 
community members. Please see attachment for full schedule of events. 

• Long time volunteer Pat Franz is moving from the area this Spring. The Friends are looking
for volunteers to drive books to Portland every one to three months to book buyers. The 
books are from the free shelf at the Hood River Library, items they do not sell at their 
annual book sale and valuable books.   

• The Friends of the Library will be part of a list of local nonprofit organizations which will be 
provided to local planning professionals who assist client with estate plans. The list is being
created by the Gorge Nonprofit Collaborative.  

• The Friends have formed an elections committee to nominate a new President and Vice 
President for the next fiscal year. 

ii. Foundation update Schoppert
• The Feast of Words was a huge success! The Foundation raised over $31,000. Staff 

received comments from attendees that they enjoyed the new layout of the event. 
• The Foundation made an announcement regarding the naming of the Stevenson Atrium

in honor of the Bruce and Mary Stevenson Foundation. The Stevenson Foundation has 

Board meeting agenda [2017-03-21], supplementary info 3



donated over $30,000 to the Library District. Ken Tatyrek will engrave a tile to match the
existing tiles in the building.

iii. February 2017 financial statements Fox
Attachments: 

• V.iii. February 2017 financial statements

The District is waiting to receive the last reimbursement check from Baker County Library for the 
SAGE Library System Fund for former employee Brent Mills. There are excess funds in the SAGE 
Library System fund due to an error at the beginning of fiscal year 2015-2016. The error occurred 
when the Sage Library System fund was created. It appears the money should have been 
attributed to fiscal year 2014-2015 and deposited in the General Fund. 

Once the last check is received the District can dissolve the account by Resolution and all 
remaining funds will be transferred back to the General Fund. I will work with SDAO and the 
Oregon Department of Revenue to ensure the Resolution is written correctly. 

iv. Director's report Fox

Attachments:
V.iv. February 2017 programs

Facilities
• Four new bike racks have been installed in front of the Hood River building. 
• Digital signage has been installed above the circulation desk. We’ll have information from the 

District, Friends and Foundation running soon.
• Assistant Director Arwen Ungar and I will meet with Oregon Corrections Enterprises to discuss 

price quotes for new furniture for the Hood River Library, which will be purchased with Feast of 
Words 2017 funds. We will also discuss options and prices for signage for the Hood River and 
Parkdale buildings for future reference. 

Personnel
• The District is in the process of hiring three on-call substitutes. We currently have two 

substitutes with limited availability on evenings and occasional Saturdays. Many libraries hire a
pool of on-call substitutes. We’re hoping by having a pool we can increase coverage while staff
are on vacation and for sick leave. The District has a set budget for substitute positions. We 
are just finishing up the hiring process. I will report on the new hires at our next Board meeting.

Programs and Services
• Last year former Library Director Buzzy Nielsen and Crag Rat volunteer Rick Ragan discussed

the District adding a special section in the library for the Crag Rats books. As Nielsen was 
transitioning out, Ragan dropped off the collection of around 75-100 books and journals. The 
Crag Rats are a local Search and Rescue operation, which has been around for many years. 

Over the past few months, Collection Development Specialist Michele Dearing, Cataloging 
Specialist Sarah Samuels and I discussed the project and how the Crag Rats collection could 
be incorporated into the existing District collection. We determined we could add many of the 
materials and create a separate section in our Columbia Gorge History room. Last month 
Dearing and I met with Ragan and Crag Rat member Tom Rousseau to pare down the 
collection to pacific northwest materials, mountaineering stories and titles that are classics in 
the field of mountaineering. We also agreed if we weeded items in the future, we would consult
first with the Crag Rats and return any items to their club. Samuels will catalog the items over 

Page 2

Board meeting agenda [2017-03-21], supplementary info 4



the next few months. Each item is stamped with the Crag Rats logo.

• The Library Express bus will run round trip from Odell to Hood River every Saturday this year 
from March 25 through September. Participants can attend a story time, movie and receive a 
snack and library book. Youth must be 11 years old to ride alone and 13 years old to ride with 
younger siblings. The project is funded by a Ready to Read 2017 grant. The bus will pick up at 
10am at the Odell Mobile home Park at 3344 Aga Rd. in Odell. Staff have connected with the 
manager of the Mobile Home Park and have been approved to go door-to-door this Saturday 
to hand out flyers to promote the bus. 

• The District has been awarded the 2016 Outstanding Ready to Read Grant Project Award. We 
were among 5 libraries out of the State of Oregon to win! Each year the State Library 
recognizes libraries that implement outstanding state-funded projects. The criteria for an 
outstanding project are: most participants achieved all the outcomes, established a good 
model for other libraries, developed strong partnerships to improve services to undeserved 
youth, or implemented an outstanding summer reading project. Katie Anderson from the State 
Library will present the award to the District at the April Board meeting. Children’s Services 
staff Jana Hannigan and Yeli Boots who run the program will be present to receive the award. 

• There will be a partial eclipse in Hood River on Monday, August 21, 2017. The District applied 
and was awarded 1,000 eclipse glasses and an education kit from the Space Science 
Institute’s National Center for Interactive Learning (NCIL). The NCIL provides interactive STEM
exhibits, programming, and training to public libraries nationwide through its Science‐
Technology Activities and Resources Library Education Network (STAR_Net). Part of the 
agreement on our end will be to provide two programs leading up to the event and on the day 
of the event. NCIL also requested the library make an effort to include people who are 
underrepresented in STEM (e.g. African Americans, Latinos, the economically disadvantaged, 
people with disabilities, and women and girls). Staff are planning several events and may add 
more. 
◦ Teen events – Make a constellation mobile for the library and a late night star gazing event 

in the summer. 
◦ Kids event – still in the brainstorming stage.
◦ Astronomy program in April – Astronomer Kevin Manning, a former consultant with NASA, 

will present a fun program.  
◦ Multicultural and multi-generational event on the day of the eclipse –  people can gather 

together to view the eclipse in the Gardens with their new glasses and a free Popsicle!
◦ Staff will also distribute glasses throughout the county at our branches and to our outreach 

locations which serves a variety of socioeconomic levels. 

VI. Previous business
i. Branch library update and discussion (ACTION) Fox

Attachments:
VI.i.a. Cascade Locks design proposals
VI.i.b. Parkdale design proposals
VI.i.c. FFA proposal for original services

Assistant Director Arwen Ungar and I met with Brenda Katz and Troy Ainsworth from FFA 
Architecture and Interiors. This is the same firm who did the remodel and expansion of the 
Hood River Library in 2003. 

Page 3

Board meeting agenda [2017-03-21], supplementary info 5



We discovered the project is a two phase process. The project was last visited in February 
2015 and has reached half way through Phase I. Four drawings for each location have been 
created and the library staff and Board in 2014 selected Plan A for Parkdale and Plan B for 
Cascade Locks. 

The District paid $7,763.07 in 2014-15 for the work completed and it would require another 
$6,526.93 to finish the planning process for both branches which would include finalizing 
sketches and a furniture estimate. There will be an additional fee for FFA to contract with 
another company Architectural Cost Consultants for a construction estimate of the project. 

Ungar and I discussed how we would like to proceed and shared our ideas with staff and we all
decided we’d like to take a new path. 

It is our recommendation we withdraw the Parkdale branch from the planning process. We’d 
like to do a minor remodel but can do the leg work ourselves. Our maintenance worker Michael
Love-Peterson is a contractor and is willing to give us a quote for painting. 

We propose the following in Parkdale: 
• Retain the current shelving connected to the walls at the Parkdale Branch Library. 
• Repaint the walls. 
• Install new carpet.
• Purchase moveable shelving to replace the middle stationary bookcase. 
• Move the staff desk near the emergency exit as originally planned. This change was 

requested by staff in case they needed to exit quickly for safety reasons.
• Purchase new furniture: table and chairs for public computers, flip table and chairs for 

adult area, staff desk, table and chairs for the children’s section.  
• Signage in front of the building.

Ungar and I met with Parkdale Fire Chief Mike McCafferty on Thursday, March 16 to discuss 
the plans for the Parkdale branch. The Parkdale Fire District owns the community building. 
McCafferty approved any cosmetic changes to paint, carpeting and furniture. The District can 
also install signage on the fence and in front of the building. The Fire District plans to replace 
all the lighting inside and outside the building with LED and install new vinyl windows. 

FFA Architecture and Interiors provided a revised quote for the Cascade Locks Branch for 
Phase I.

• FFA fee $3,320. 
• Architectural Cost Consultant fee $1,572.
• Total cost to complete Phase I for Cascade Locks Branch $4,892. 

Phase II for Cascade Locks Branch will include a final design, construction documents 
(drawings and specifications) as well as construction administration (which includes answering 
contractors questions, reviewing submittals and construction observation at designated 
intervals). 

If the Board approves, I will set up another meeting with Superintendent Dan Goldman to 
confirm they still approve of the District moving into the space. After the meeting with Goldman,
I’d like to proceed with completing Phase I. I seek approval from the Board to spend up to 
$5,500 from the Capital Equipment Reserve fund to finish Phase I with FFA Architecture and 
Interiors. 

Page 4

Board meeting agenda [2017-03-21], supplementary info 6



VII. New business
i. Provisional Library Card (ACTION) Fox

Attachments:
VII.i.a. Proposed Library Card Policy revisions
VII.i.b. Resolution 2016-17.06, amending Library Card Policy

In March 2016, a Homeless/Shelter card was added to our Library policy and passed by 
Resolution at the March 22, 2016 District Board meeting. This card is aimed at individuals 
who are experiencing homelessness, live in a domestic violence shelter, or otherwise have 
unstable living situations. At the Library Director’s meeting I attended last month in Salem, 
Oregon we discussed these type of cards during our discussion on serving patrons who are
experiencing homelessness. A Library Director suggested naming the card “Provisional 
Card”, which I believe is a better term which does not openly label or identify a person. I 
recommend we revise our Library Card Policy to change the name of the card to 
Provisional Card.

ii. Board Governance Policy revision (ACTION) Fox
Attachments:
VII.ii.a. Proposed revisions to Board Governance Policy
VII.ii.b. Resolution 2015-16.07, amending Board Governance Policy

The Board tries to reviews its policies annually to ensure that they're consistent and 
current. They're mostly simplified wording and corrections/updates to the statute 
references. Attached is a proposed revision. 

• p.1, B: Update the Oregon Revised Statute reference regarding four year terms.

iii. Technology Planning session Fox
According to the Board Governance Plan, section M, the Board shall undertake an annual 
planning session. The District Board have completed the following planning sessions:

• Strategic Planning Session with Mary Kay Dahlgreen, Oregon State Librarian (2011-
2012)

• Planning session for young adult services with Katie Anderson, Youth Services 
Consultant at the Oregon State Library (2012-2013)

• Facilities planning session with architect Rich Turi (2013-2014)
• Technology Planning Session, Darci Hanning, Technology Development Consultant in 

Library Support & Development at the Oregon State Library (2014-2015)
• Strategic Plan with Penny Hummel (2015-16)

This year Snyder and I discussed working with our IT person Ken Jacobs to create a 
Technology Plan, which consists of a maintenance/replacement schedule. Jacobs is willing to 
lead the session. This session would be in addition to our regular monthly meeting. If the Board
approves, we can look at possible dates. 

iv. Janitorial contract addendum (ACTION) Fox
Attachments:
VII.iv.a. 2015-18 Janitorial contract with Clean-All Janitorial
VII.iv.b. 2017-18 Addendum to janitorial contract

Page 5

Board meeting agenda [2017-03-21], supplementary info 7



We have a three-year contract with local business Clean-All Janitorial to clean Hood River 
Library, empty garbage cans in the Georgiana Smith Memorial Gardens, and clean the 
windows, carpet, and vinyl tile annually. The firm has not increased their monthly charge 
($1,723) since we started with them four years ago. I proposed a few changes to the contract 
this year, which will increase our monthly cost to ($1823). They are highlighted in red in the 
contract addendum. Nielsen budgeted for a potential increase to the contract this fiscal year, 
so our budget is sufficient to cover the cost.

v. Parking reimbursement for library volunteers discussion Fox
In the 2016-17 budget, $1,000 has been allocated to reimburse library volunteers for their 
parking fees while they are volunteering for the library. Tara Kamp from District auditing firm 
Pauly, Rogers and Co. confirmed the safest way to track the funds will be to have a cash bag 
in the safe with no more than $200 in the safe. Volunteers will fill out information on a ledger 
with name, date, and amount of parking fees to be reimbursed. Library staff will be handling 
the cash by giving it to the volunteers. Two staff members will be present for a weekly count of 
the cash bag and balance against the ledger. 

Instead of withdrawing cash from the bank, District Accountant Brian O'Shaughnessy from 
Onstott Broehl & Cyphers said I can have a check issued to the District, which a staff and 
board member will sign. If the Board approves of this process, I will proceed with setting up the
system.

vi. Library Director review questions Fox
Attachments:
VII.vi.a. Library Director Evaluation Policy
VII.vi.b. Board of Directors evaluation questions
VII.vi.c. Community member evaluation questions
VII.vi.d. Library Director evaluation questions
VII.vi.e. Staff evaluation questions

I will be reviewed annually at the June Board meeting. The process is delineated in the Library 
Director Evaluation Policy. It's a 360º process. I evaluate myself, the staff evaluates me, 
selected community members evaluate me, and finally, with those previous three evaluations, 
the Board evaluates me. The questions use a 1-5 scale, with optional comments. The process 
typically runs from May through June, with the review happening at the June regular Board 
meeting, usually in executive session (although my evaluation is considered a public record, 
unlike other staff). The process goes like this:

The Board reviews and approves the questions.

In May, I am given two weeks to complete my self-evaluation. It mainly consists of narrative.
At the same time, the staff and community members (which consists of the Presidents of the 
Friends and Foundation plus other individuals selected by the Board) are given their questions,
which are distributed via online survey. The Assistant Director administers the online surveys 
using the District's SurveyMonkey account.

Once all three of those evaluations are completed, they're compiled by the Assistant Director 
and given to the Board to assist in completing their evaluations.
Once the Board is completed, I am given a week before the June meeting to review the 
evaluation.

Page 6

Board meeting agenda [2017-03-21], supplementary info 8



At the June meeting, the evaluation meeting happens. At that time, the Board determines 
whether to renew my annual contract and if a step increase is warranted.
The evaluation goes into my personnel file.

Please look over the questions to determine if they capture what you'd like for each of the four 
groups. I do not have any suggested changes to the process or the questions this year. These 
questions need formal approval.

VIII.Agenda items for next meeting                                                                                   Snyder

IX. Adjournment Snyder

_______________

Other matters may be discussed as deemed appropriate by the Board. If necessary, Executive 
Session may be held in accordance with the following. Bolded topics are scheduled for the current 
meeting's executive session.

ORS 192.660 (1) (d) Labor Negotiations
ORS 192.660 (1) (e) Property
ORS 192.660 (1) (h) Legal Rights
ORS 192.660 (1) (i) Personnel

The Board of Directors meets on the 3rd Tuesday each month from 7.00 to 9.00p in the Jeanne Marie 
Gaulke Memorial Meeting Room at 502 State Street, Hood River, Oregon. Sign language 
interpretation for the hearing impaired is available if at least 48 hours notice is given.

Page 7

Board meeting agenda [2017-03-21], supplementary info 9



Board of Directors
Regular Meeting Minutes

Tuesday, February 21, 2017, 7.00p
Jeanne Marie Gaulke Community Meeting Room

502 State St, Hood River
Sara Snyder President

Present: Rachael Fox (staff),  Arwen Ungar (Staff) Tara Kamp (Pauly Rogers & Co.) by Skype, Sara
Snyder, Alexis Vaivoda, John Schoppert, Karen Bureker, Jean Sheppard, Megan Janik (Public)

I. Additions/deletions from the agenda (ACTION) Snyder
Board President Sara Snyder called the meeting to order at 7:02pm. Bureker moved to approve 
the agenda as presented. Vaivoda seconded. The motion carried unanimously. 

II. Actual or potential conflicts of interest Snyder
None stated.

III. Consent agenda (ACTION) Snyder

i. Minutes from January 24, 2017 meeting
ii. Approval Contract for Gardens Maintenance Services
iii. Magazine and newspaper renewal 
iv. Budget committee and calendar approval

Bureker moved to approve the consent agenda as presented. Vaivoda seconded. The motion 
carried unanimously.

IV. District Audit report Kamp
• Tara Kamp from Pauly Rogers & Co. presented the District's 2015-16 fiscal year audit. The 

purpose of the audit is to assess whether the financial statements are correct and that the 
District is following financial regulations. Pauly Rogers issued the District an unmodified 
opinion, which is the best opinion an organization can get. There were a few minor 
administrative issues: the Materials & Services sections of the General Funds and Personal 
Services in the Grants fund were marginally overspent. The auditors issued no management 
letter, which means that they did not disagree with management.

• Kamp had some recommendations, which they suggest to nearly all of their clients. She 
recommended that the Board review their fidelity insurance coverage, to ensure that it's at a 
prudent level. The District currently has $100,000 of fidelity coverage, which Kamp feels is 
probably sufficient. The District should also check to ensure that the 403(b) retirement plan 
with T. Rowe Price. Fox will ask BCI Group to assist with this. Kamp has a checklist of best 
practices for governing body monitoring of finances. She'll send it to Fox to share with the 
Board. 

V. Open forum for the general public Snyder
Megan Janik from Cascade Locks, Oregon said she is interested in filing for an open Board 
position. 

VI. Reports 

i. Friends update Fox
There was nothing to add the written report.

ii. Foundation update Schoppert

III.i. Minutes from February 21, 2017 meeting 10



There was nothing to add to the written report.
iii. December 2016 & January 2017 financial statements Fox

iv. Director's report
There was nothing to add to the written report. Fox

VII. Previous business
VIII.New business

i. SDAO Conference Report Fox
There was nothing to add to the written report.

ii. Library Director evaluation Snyder
Fox discussed the progress staff has made regarding the five-year strategic goals for 2016-
2021. Snyder asked Board members to remark on what they like Fox has done and what 
they want her to work on. Schoppert stated he liked the idea of a cohesive marketing plan 
for staff and thought that collaboration is great. Vaivoida stated she appreciated the smooth
transition and felt like we were heading in the direction we have been.  Sheppard stated 
she appreciated how Fox has taken on areas like Budget and Finance which was an area 
new to her. She would like Fox to focus on the Cascade Locks Branch renovation and 
Parkdale branch remodel. Bureker states she thought the communication is good and 
appreciated the new member packet and training. Snyder said she appreciated Fox calm 
presence and knows the transition has been hard at times. She appreciates seeing how 
Fox has added her own touch to leading the District. Snyder wants Fox to focus on Odell 
and would like it flourish as a hub. 

IX. Agenda items for next meeting                                                                Snyder

X. Adjournment Snyder
The meeting adjourned at 8:13pm. 

_______________

Other matters may be discussed as deemed appropriate by the Board. If necessary, Executive 
Session may be held in accordance with the following. Bolded topics are scheduled for the current 
meeting's executive session.

ORS 192.660 (1) (d) Labor Negotiations
ORS 192.660 (1) (e) Property
ORS 192.660 (1) (h) Legal Rights
ORS 192.660 (1) (i) Personnel

The Board of Directors meets on the 3rd Tuesday each month from 7.00 to 9.00p in the Jeanne Marie 
Gaulke Memorial Meeting Room at 502 State Street, Hood River, Oregon. Sign language 
interpretation for the hearing impaired is available if at least 48 hours notice is given.

Page 2

III.i. Minutes from February 21, 2017 meeting 11



III.ii. Invoice Multicultural Books & Videos (MCBV) 12



III.ii. Invoice Multicultural Books & Videos (MCBV) 13



III.ii. Invoice Multicultural Books & Videos (MCBV) 14



III.ii. Invoice Multicultural Books & Videos (MCBV) 15



III.ii. Invoice Multicultural Books & Videos (MCBV) 16



III.ii. Invoice Multicultural Books & Videos (MCBV) 17



III.ii. Invoice Multicultural Books & Videos (MCBV) 18



III.ii. Invoice Multicultural Books & Videos (MCBV) 19



III.ii. Invoice Multicultural Books & Videos (MCBV) 20



III.ii. Invoice Multicultural Books & Videos (MCBV) 21



V.i. Hood River Reads brochure 1 22



V.i. Hood River Reads brochure 2 23



V.iii. February 2017 financial statments 24



V.iii. February 2017 financial statments 25



V.iii. February 2017 financial statments 26



V.iii. February 2017 financial statments 27



V.iii. February 2017 financial statments 28



V.iii. February 2017 financial statments 29



V.iii. February 2017 financial statments 30



V.iii. February 2017 financial statments 31



V.iii. February 2017 financial statments 32



V.iii. February 2017 financial statments 33



Program statistics, February 2017

Event Cosponsor(s) Location Date Attendees
ADULT PROGRAMS

Odell 45

Migrant Parent Meeting Mid-Valley Odell February 1 200

Adult total 245
KIDS PROGRAMS

La Hora Infanil: Radio Show Radio Tierra The Gorge February 1 500

Preschool Story Time HR Feb 2, 16, 23 86

Infant/Toddler Story Time HR Feb 2, 16, 23 76

LTC Meeting HR Feb 11, 18, 21

Story Time Tuesday's Hood River 75

Class Visit – Smarty Pants HR Library Feb 22 27

LTC Class Visits HRMS Feb 23 225

CL Story Time CL Feb 25 3

Class Visit – Horizon School HR Library Feb 24 32

Story Time Monday’s Mid-Valley Odell February 27 85

Kids total 1,130
TEEN PROGRAMS

Teen Council Hood River Feb 11, 18 8

Doctor Who crafts Hood River Feb 25 12

Teen total 20

Odell Book Mobile/Library @ Zumba Mon's & 
Thurs's

Hood River 
Providence 
Hospital & St. 
Francis House

February 
23,27

Learning Farm 
Preschool

February 
21,28

V.iv. February 2017 programs 34



OPTION A

PULL DOWN SCREEN

STUDY
SINK / STORAGE

IN
T

E
R

N
E

T
 B

A
R

PROGRAM AREA

LO
W

 S
H

E
LV

IN
G

O
R

 B
E

N
C

H
E

X
IS

T
. H

V
A

C
 U

N
IT

E
X

IS
T

. H
V

A
C

 U
N

IT

LO
W

 S
H

E
LV

IN
G

O
R

 B
E

N
C

H

STUDY

STAFF

COPY/
PRINT

ENTRY
VEST.

CHILDREN'S
AREA

VI.i.a. Cascade Locks proposal 35



OPTION B

PULL DOWN SCREEN

STUDY
SINK / STORAGE

IN
T

E
R

N
E

T
 B

A
R

PROGRAM AREA

LO
W

 S
H

E
LV

IN
G

O
R

 B
E

N
C

H
E

X
IS

T
. H

V
A

C
 U

N
IT

E
X

IS
T

. H
V

A
C

 U
N

IT

LO
W

 S
H

E
LV

IN
G

O
R

 B
E

N
C

H

SHELVING

STAFF

COPY/
PRINT

ENTRY
VEST.

CHILDREN'S
AREA

STAND-UP
OPAC, ETC.

VI.i.a. Cascade Locks proposal 36



OPTION C

PULL DOWN SCREEN

STUDY
SINK / STORAGE

IN
T

E
R

N
E

T
 B

A
R

PROGRAM AREA

LO
W

 S
H

E
LV

IN
G

O
R

 B
E

N
C

H
E

X
IS

T
. H

V
A

C
 U

N
IT

E
X

IS
T

. H
V

A
C

 U
N

IT

LO
W

 S
H

E
LV

IN
G

O
R

 B
E

N
C

H

LOUNGE

STAFF

COPY/
PRINT

ENTRY
VEST.

CHILDREN'S
AREA

VI.i.a. Cascade Locks proposal 37



OPTION D

PULL DOWN SCREEN

STUDY
SINK / STORAGE

IN
T

E
R

N
E

T
 B

A
R

PROGRAM AREA

LO
W

 S
H

E
LV

IN
G

O
R

 B
E

N
C

H
E

X
IS

T
. H

V
A

C
 U

N
IT

E
X

IS
T

. H
V

A
C

 U
N

IT

LO
W

 S
H

E
LV

IN
G

O
R

 B
E

N
C

H

STAFF

ENTRY
VEST.

CHILDREN'S
AREA

LOW SHELVING
OR BENCH

VI.i.a. Cascade Locks proposal 38



OPTION D-ALT

PULL DOWN SCREEN

STUDY
SINK / STORAGE

IN
T

E
R

N
E

T
 B

A
R

PROGRAM AREA

LO
W

 S
H

E
LV

IN
G

O
R

 B
E

N
C

H
E

X
IS

T
. H

V
A

C
 U

N
IT

E
X

IS
T

. H
V

A
C

 U
N

IT

LO
W

 S
H

E
LV

IN
G

O
R

 B
E

N
C

H

STAFF

ENTRY
VEST.

CHILDREN'S
AREA

LOW SHELVING
OR BENCH

VI.i.a. Cascade Locks proposal 39



OPTION A

COMPUTERS

S
T

A
F

F

CHILDREN'S
AREA

DEL/
EXIT

OPAC M
O

N
IT

O
R

LOUNGE

ENTRY

A
C

C
E

S
S

IB
LE

 

R
A

M
P

VI.i.b. Parkdale design proposals 40



OPTION B

COMPUTERS

S
T

A
F

F

CHILDREN'S AREA

DEL/
EXIT

OPAC M
O

N
IT

O
R

LOUNGE

ENTRY

A
C

C
E

S
S

IB
LE

 

R
A

M
P

VI.i.b. Parkdale design proposals 41



OPTION C

C
O

M
P

U
T

E
R

S

STAFF

C
H

IL
D

R
E

N
'S

 A
R

E
A

DEL/
EXIT

OPAC

ENTRY

A
C

C
E

S
S

IB
LE

 

R
A

M
P

VI.i.b. Parkdale design proposals 42



OPTION D

COMPUTERS

STAFF

C
H

IL
D

R
E

N
'S

 A
R

E
A

DEL/
EXIT

OPAC

LOUNGE

ENTRY

A
C

C
E

S
S

IB
LE

 

R
A

M
P

ALT.
OPAC

VI.i.b. Parkdale design proposals 43



VI.i.c. FFA proposal for original services 44



VI.i.c. FFA proposal for original services 45



VI.i.c. FFA proposal for original services 46



VI.i.c. FFA proposal for original services 47



VI.i.c. FFA proposal for original services 48



VI.i.c. FFA proposal for original services 49



Library Card Policy

Hood River County Library District cards allow their holders to borrow a 
wide variety of free information and entertainment materials. They also 
provide access to the District’s licensed electronic resources remotely.

Any resident of Hood River County, resident of a Metropolitan Interlibrary Exchange (MIX) 
library, or cardholder at an Oregon Library Passport Program (OLPP) library is eligible to 
receive a free library card from the District. The District also honors current valid library cards 
from any other library in the Sage Library System. Materials may be checked out from and 
returned to any Sage library.

Regular Library Cards
Patrons 18 and older may receive a regular library card by going to any District library and 
providing name, mailing address, street address, contact information, and date of birth. 
Patrons who are 16 or 17 can receive cards by providing the same information, as well as the 
name of their parent/guardian. Patrons 15 or younger must have approval of a 
parent/guardian accepting responsibility.

The person accepting responsibility for use of the library card (the adult or teen patron or 
parent/guardian) must provide proof of identification and current residence and mailing 
address. Acceptable proof of identification and residency include but are not limited to the 
following:

• Valid government-issued photo ID or voter's registration card
• Valid student photo identification
• Utility bill
• Rent receipt signed by a landlord
• Lease or mortgage agreement
• Imprinted check
• Postmarked piece of mail delivered to the mailing address

For patrons 17 and under, a parent/guardian's card in good standing may be used as proof of 
residence and mailing address. Staff members are encouraged to use sound but flexible 
judgment in accepting applications and proof of address, remembering that the District's 
major aims are to verify that the applicant lives in an area eligible for a free card and have 
enough information to contact the patron regarding hold pickup, billing, and other notices.

Patrons who come to a library without sufficient identification to get a library card are 
welcome to use the library facilities, including any materials and equipment, and take any free
items on offer.

Privileges and Restrictions
Library cards are not transferable; each patron must have his/her own card to check out 

VII.i.a. Proposed Library Card Policy revisions 50



Library Card Policy, p.2

materials. To check out, patrons must show the card in person, show it digitally, provide valid 
photo ID, or verify information on the account. Family members living in the same household 
may pick up each other's holds. A patron also may allow another individual to pick up his/her 
holds by giving that individual the card to present at the library. If doing business remotely, 
they must verify information on the account. 

To help optimize availability of the collection to the public, the District limits the total number of
items that can be checked out at the same time on a regular card to 50. Because holds and 
interlibrary loan requests are labor-intensive services, patrons also are limited to nine 
outstanding holds within the Sage Library System and six outstanding out-of-Sage interlibrary 
loan requests.

Other card types
Library staff, at the discretion of the Library Director, are authorized to issue specialized types 
of library cards with different privileges and restrictions from regular cards.

• Institutional cards: Institutional cards are issued to organizations or businesses serving
Hood River County that wish to use library services for business purposes. Institutional
cards may have higher item limits or loan periods. To create an institutional card, a staff
member of that organization must provide a valid photo ID as well as a business card 
in their name showing their association with the organization as well as the 
organization's contact information. Cards are issued at the discretion of the Library 
Director or Assistant Director.

• Metropolitan Interlibrary eXchange (MIX): MIX cards are issued to patrons residing 
within the service area of a participating MIX library. Cards have the same privileges, 
restrictions, and ID/address requirements as regular cards but can be used in-person 
only at HRCLD locations.

• Non-resident cards: Non-resident cards are issued to individuals who are temporary 
residents, do not reside within Hood River County, or don't qualify for MIX, OLPP, and 
other Sage library cards. Cards have the same privileges, restrictions, and ID/address 
requirements as regular cards but expire at the time the individual expects to leave the 
area or in one year, whichever comes first. There is a non-refundable fee of $20 for 
three months or $80 per year. That fee is waived for area camp hosts.

• Oregon Library Passport Program (OLPP) cards: OLPP cards are issued to patrons 
who have a valid library card from a participating OLPP library. OLPP cards have the 
same privileges, restrictions, and ID/address requirements as regular cards but do not 
have remote access to the District's licensed electronic resources and expire one year 
from the issue date.

• Provisional Homeless/sheltercards: Homeless/shelterProvisional cards are issued to 
individuals with unstable living situations, such as those experiencing homelessness 
individualsor those living in domestic violence shelters. To receive a Provisional card, 
individuals must present a government-issued photo ID (it does not have to be valid) 
and give a contact phone number. Cards are limited to two items checked out at once, 
one hold on HRCLD items only, are good only at HRCLD locations, and expire in three 
months but may be renewed.

VII.i.a. Proposed Library Card Policy revisions 51



Library Card Policy, p.3

Loan Periods
All circulating materials, except movies, check out for three weeks. Movies check out for one 
week. Patrons may renew materials by contacting any District or Sage library. An item may 
not be renewed if another person is waiting for it, it has already been renewed twice, or the 
patron has been billed for the item.

Fines and Fees
Materials that are kept beyond their due dates will incur overdue fines. There is a three-day 
grace period on all items during which fines will not be charged. Fines are $0.10/day, $3 per 
item maximum.

The District also collects fees for the following:

• Lost or irreparably damaged items: Retail cost of item + $5 processing fee. Patrons 
may bring in a good identical copy of an item to have the retail cost waived. They will 
still be charged the processing fee.

• Damaged items, if repairable: $10 or the cost of the repair, whichever is higher.
• Destroyed media case: Audiobooks, $10; everything else, $5
• Lost media piece (e.g. disc from an audiobook or DVD series), if individually 

replaceable: $10 or the replacement cost, whichever is higher.
• Damaged media cover art: $5 or the replacement cost, whichever is higher.
• Damaged barcode or spine label: $1.
• Out-of-Sage interlibrary loans: $3 plus any fees charged by lending library
• Non-resident cards: $20 for 3 months or $80/year
• Replacement card - $1

Fees paid for lost materials may be refunded, less the processing fee, if they are returned in 
good condition within six months of having paid the fee. 

Overdues and Billing 
Patrons will be notified about overdue materials by email only. Otherwise, it is the patron's 
responsibility to monitor their record for overdue items. If a patron fails to return overdue 
materials within four weeks of the due date, the material will be considered lost and the patron
will be billed for the item.

The District will not check out materials to any patron with outstanding fines or fees exceeding
$15 at any library or combination of libraries in the Sage Library System. Borrowing privileges 
will be restored when outstanding fees are brought under $15.

Exceptions to any provisions of this policy are at the discretion of the Library Director or 
designee.

Adopted by the Board of Directors, July 12, 2011
Last revised, March 21 2017

VII.i.a. Proposed Library Card Policy revisions 52



Resolution No. 2016-17.06

Resolution revising the Library Card Policy

WHEREAS, the District wishes to provide library cards to the homeless, residents of 
domestic violence shelters, and other individuals with unstable housing situations; and

WHEREAS, the District wants to change the name of the card from Homeless/shelter 
card to Provisional card;

Now, therefore be it RESOLVED, that the Board amends the Library Card Policy as 
presented in the attached document and discussed and revised during the meeting of 
March 21, 2017.

Adopted by the Board of Directors of Hood River County Library District this 21st day of 
March, 2017.

ATTEST:

____________________________ ____________________________
Sara Snyder, President Rachael Fox, Library Director

VII.i.b. Resolution 2016-17.06, amending Library Card Policy 53



Board Governance Policy

 I. Membership

 A. Composition
 I. The Directors of the District are a Board of five members elected 

by the electors of the District. (ORS 357.226-357.236).
 II. Any elector residing within the District is qualified to serve as a Board member (ORS

357.226). Current District employees or officers may not serve as Board members.
 III. Board members are elected at large.

 B. Term of office
Board members shall serve staggered four-year terms or until election and 
qualification of a successor (ORS 357.2361).

 C. Vacancies
Vacancies on the Board due to resignation or incapacity to serve are to be filled by the 
remaining members of the Board in accordance with ORS 198.320.

 D. Interaction Agreement
In its work together, the Board always shall seek the best outcomes for the District, its 
users, and its taxpayers. The Board shall listen carefully to one another and strive to 
hear the best elements of a suggestion. The Board shall seek to create an atmosphere 
where differences of opinion are expressed freely. The Board shall involve each other in 
discussions they have about the District to ensure that everyone is able to make 
informed decisions. The Board shall speak carefully to respect the time and feelings of its
volunteer colleagues. The Board shall celebrate its successes and persevere through 
difficult times.

 E. Education
Board members should be aware of the requirements of the Oregon Government Ethics 
laws and all other laws and policies pertaining to the District and ethical standards 
expected of members. Members are required regularly to attend or view conferences, 
and other trainings relevant to District business. 

 F. Board Candidates 
District staff shall cooperate impartially with candidates for the Board and provide them 
with information about Board policies, administrative regulations, and other aspects of 
the District. 

 G. Orientation of new Board members 
The Board and District staff shall assist each new member-elect and appointee to 
understand the Board’s functions, policies, procedures, and legal & ethical 
responsibilities before s/he takes office.

VII.ii.a. Proposed revisions to Board Governance Policy 54



 II. Ethics

 A. Education
Board members should be aware of the requirements of the Oregon Government Ethics 
laws and all other laws and policies pertaining to the District and ethical standards 
expected of members. Members are expected to attend or view conferences, and other 
trainings relevant to District business. 

 B. Financial Gain
Board members are prohibited from using their position to receive certain financial 
benefits if the opportunity for the benefit would not otherwise be available but for their 
position, including benefits for themselves, a relative as defined by Oregon law, a 
member of the Board member's household, or a business with which the board member, 
a relative, or a member of the Board member's household is associated. 

 C. Compensation
Board members may receive expense reimbursement, honorariums, unsolicited awards 
for professional achievement, and some gifts as allowed by Oregon Government Ethics 
laws.

 D. Gifts
No Board member shall solicit or receive any gifts with a total value of more than $50 
from any 
single source who could reasonably have a financial interest in the member's official 
actions . A gift is defined as something of value for which the Board member does not 
pay an equal value, including entertainment. This provision only restricts gifts from 
sources that have an administrative or legislative interest in the Board member's actions; 
unlimited gifts may be accepted from a source that does not have a legislative or 
administrative interest.

 E. Conflicts of interest
Board members must declare actual or potential conflicts of interest and their nature.
 I. Actual conflicts occur when the Board member's action would affect financial 

interest as defined in section B above. Following announcement of the actual 
conflict, Board members with actual conflicts may not participate in the official action
that gave rise to the conflict.

 II. Potential conflicts when the Board member's action could affect financial interest as 
defined in section B above. Following announcement of the potential conflict, Board 
members with potential conflicts may participate in the official action that gave rise 
to the conflict.

 III. If a Board member has an actual conflict and his/her vote is necessary to meet the 
minimum number of votes required for official action, the board member may vote. 
Prior to consideration of the matter, the Board member must make the required 
announcement and refrain from any discussion, but may participate in the vote. This
provision only applies in circumstances when all Board members are present and 
the number of members who must refrain due to actual conflicts make it impossible 
for the Board to take official action. 

VII.ii.a. Proposed revisions to Board Governance Policy 55



 III. Officers

 A. Officers and duties.
 I. The officers of the Board shall be a President, Vice President, and Secretary.
 II. The President shall perform those duties prescribed by this policy, the Oregon 

Revised Statutes, and the parliamentary authority. The President’s role as presiding 
officer of the Board does not affect their right to vote. The President shall sign official
District documents on behalf of the Board when authorized by the Board.

 III. The Vice President shall have the powers and duties of the President in their 
absence.

 IV. In the absence of the President and Vice President, the remaining three members 
shall elect a temporary Presiding Officer.

 V. The Library Director shall serve as Secretary of the District. The Director may 
delegate any of the secretary’s duties to staff. The Secretary shall perform those 
duties prescribed by this policy, the Oregon Revised Statutes, and the parliamentary
authority. The Secretary is an ex-officio, non-voting member of the Board. (ORS 
357.226.)

 B. Nominations and elections
 I. Nominations for President and Vice President shall be taken from the floor at the 

start of the first regular meeting in July.
 II. Elections shall be held by voice vote. The candidate receiving a majority of votes 

cast shall be elected.

 C. Term of office
The President and Vice President shall serve for one year or until their successors are 
elected. Their term of office shall begin upon election.

 D. Vacancies
A vacancy in the President or Vice President position shall be filled by the Board for the 
unexpired portion of the term of the vacant office at the next regular or special meeting.

 E. The majority (three members) of the full Board is necessary to adopt a motion, 
resolution, ordinance, or to take any other action.

 IV. Responsibilities

 A. The Board shall:
 I. Formulate District policies.
 II. Take action as necessary for operation of the District by use of ordinances, 

resolutions, and motions.
 III. Appoint the Library Director, who is recognized as having full executive and 

administrative authority to manage daily operations consistent with District policy 
and procedure.

 IV. Supervise the Library Director.
 V. Employ all necessary agents and assistants.

VII.ii.a. Proposed revisions to Board Governance Policy 56



 VI. Arrange for legal representation and consultation. Legal counsel shall report to and 
be responsible to the Board but shall communicate with the Board primarily through 
the President and Library Director. Individual Board members shall refrain from 
communicating with legal counsel without the consent of the President or explicit 
Board direction.

 VII. Arrange for deposit and distribution of tax funds, grant monies, and donations. (ORS
357.276)

 VIII.Oversee budget
 a. Establish a Budget Committee. (ORS 294.414)
 b. Appoint a Budget officer, generally the Library Director who shall prepare or 

supervise preparing  the budget document under the direction of the Board. 
(ORS 294.331)

 c. Approve the annual budget and assess, levy, and collect property taxes 
(including setting the tax rate within the limits approved by the electors) as per 
ORS 357.261(4)

 d. Oversee District finances.
 IX. Develop long-range strategic plans for the District.
 X. Approve all contracts exceeding the Library Director's spending authority.
 XI. Approve employee salary schedules and benefits.
 XII. Appoint committees as needed for the operation of the District. Committees have no

powers except those delegated by the Board. 
 XIII.Take other such action as consistent with Oregon law including ORS 357.261, as 

the Board deems appropriate.

 B. Limitations on individual Board members
 I. Board members have no individual powers separate from the powers of the Board 

and have no authority to act individually without authorization from the Board. These
restrictions include unauthorized involvement in personnel matters. 

 II. A Board member shall act as a spokesperson for the Board only when so 
designated. When not representing the agreed position of the Board, members must
identify their statements as their personal opinions and not those of the Board.

 III. The Board, by majority vote of the full Board, may suspend all or a portion of these 
policies and procedures, provided that such suspension is consistent with Oregon 
law.

 C. Discipline
If necessary, the Board may discipline a Board member who does not follow its adopted 
rules and policies.

 V. Meetings

 A. Public meeting law
All Board meetings and work sessions shall be conducted in accordance with Oregon 
Public Meetings Law.
 I. All meetings of the Board shall be open to the public except as otherwise provided 

by Oregon Public Meetings Law.
 II. Every regular and work session shall include opportunity for public comment. The 

VII.ii.a. Proposed revisions to Board Governance Policy 57



presiding officer may limit the length of public comment and may revoke permission
to speak if a speaker’s comments are unduly repetitive,disruptive, or ad hominem.

 B. Regular meetings
Regular meetings of the Board shall be held monthly on a regularly-scheduled day of 
the month. The day and time shall be set by resolution annually during the regular 
meeting in July. 
 I. The Board may cancel or reschedule the date or dates of regular meetings as it 

deems fit, subject to the notice provisions of the Oregon Public Meetings Law.

 C. Work sessions
Work sessions of the Board may be called by the President or by three Board 
members.
 I. Subjects discussed at a work session shall be limited to the agenda items.
 II. Final decisions shall not be made at a work session.
 III.A work session may be held in conjunction with a regular or special meeting.  Final 

action may be taken at a regular or special meeting held in conjunction with a work 
session or at the next regular or special meeting.

 D. Special meetings
Special meetings may be held at the request of the President or any three members of 
the Board. If the President is absent from the District, special board meetings may be 
held at the request of the Vice President. No special meeting shall be held upon less 
than twenty-four hours public notice.

 E. Emergency meetings
Emergency meetings may be held at the request of persons entitled to call special 
meetings, upon less than twenty-four hours notice in cases of emergency. An 
emergency exists where there are objective circumstances that create a real and 
substantial risk of harm to the District if action is delayed. The caller(s) of the meeting 
shall state the reasons for calling it and why it could not be delayed. The Board shall 
then determine if the reasons are sufficient to hold an emergency meeting, and the 
minutes for such a meeting shall describe the emergency justifying less than 24 hours’ 
notice. Only business related directly to the emergency shall be conducted at an 
emergency meeting.

 F. Executive sessions
 I. Shall be held in accordance with Oregon Public Meetings Law.
 II. The applicable statute must be stated prior to the meeting.
 III.The Board shall not make any final decisions during executive session.
 IV.Board members, staff, media representatives, and other persons present shall not 

discuss or disclose executive session proceedings outside of the executive session 
without prior authorization of the Board as a whole.

 G. Location
All Board meetings shall be held within the geographic boundaries of the District, 
except for training sessions held without any deliberative action. Meetings typically 
shall be held at the Hood River Library in the community meeting room. 

VII.ii.a. Proposed revisions to Board Governance Policy 58



 H. Quorum
A majority of the Board (three members) shall constitute a quorum.

 I. Agenda
The agenda shall be set by the Library Director in consultation with the President. 
Meetings should generally be limited to published agenda topics, although by 
agreement of a majority of the Board members, additional topics may be added.

 J. Notice
Notice of the time, place, and principal agenda topics shall be given for all meetings as 
soon as is feasible. Notices shall be sent to Board members, local media, persons who
have requested notice in writing, and any persons whom the District knows may have 
a special interest in a particular action, unless such notification would be unduly 
burdensome or expensive. The agenda shall also be posted at all District library 
branches. Notice for meetings called only to hold executive sessions shall be given in 
the same manner as notice for other meetings set forth above except that the notice 
need only indicate the general subject matter to be considered at the executive session
and the statutory basis for convening an executive session.

 K. Accessibility
 I. No meeting shall be held in any place where discrimination on the basis of gender, 

gender identity, sexual orientation, race, color, religion, veteran status, national 
origin, ancestry, age, marital status, family relationship, political affiliation, or 
physical or mental disability is practiced.  All meetings shall be held in places 
accessible to the handicapped.

 II. The District shall provide upon request interpreters for the hearing impaired as 
provided for by Oregon Public Meetings Law.

 L. Minutes
Minutes must be kept of all Board meetings and Board-appointed committee meetings.
Minutes shall include a list of present Board or committee members, all motions, 
proposals, resolutions, orders, ordinances, and measures proposed and their 
disposition, results of all votes, including the vote of each member by name, and the 
substance of any discussion on any matter. Minutes for executive sessions shall be 
kept and retained separately.

 M.Planning session
The Board shall undertake an annual planning session.

 N. Virtual participation
Except for hearings on quasi-judicial matters and executive sessions, members may 
participate in meetings via teleconference, videoconference, web conference, or other 
technologies allowing synchronous communication among members. Notice and 
opportunity for public access shall be provided when meetings are conducted by 
electronic means. Notices shall be made using the same requirements as in-person 
meetings.

VII.ii.a. Proposed revisions to Board Governance Policy 59



 VI.Committees

 A. Budget Committee
The Budget Committee shall be a standing committee of the Board.
 I. The committee shall consist of the five members of the Board and five appointed 

electors within the District. Appointed members cannot be officers, agents, or 
employees of the District.

 II. Committee members shall serve for three years. Their terms shall be staggered so 
that as near as possible one third of the terms of the appointed members shall end 
each year.

 III.Appointed members may not receive any compensation for their service on the 
committee. 

 IV.A vacancy on the committee shall be filled by the Board for the unexpired portion of
the term at the next regular or special meeting.

 B. Special committees
 I. Special committees may be appointed at the discretion of the Board or President as

necessary to assist the Board in accomplishing its purposes.
 II. Special committee members need not be members of the Board.

 C. Public meeting rules
Meetings of Board committees are subject to the Oregon Public Meetings Law.

 VII. Parliamentary Authority
The latest edition of Robert's Rules of Order Newly Revised shall govern the Board in all 
cases in which they are applicable and in which they are not inconsistent with the Oregon 
Revised Statutes, this policy, and any special rules of order the Board may adopt.

 VIII. Amendments
The Board Governance Policy may be amended by resolution at any regular or special 
meeting provided that at least five days notice is given and a majority of Board members vote 
in favor.

Approved by the Board of Directors, April 5, 2011
Last amended, February 16, 2016

VII.ii.a. Proposed revisions to Board Governance Policy 60



Resolution No. 2016-17.07

Resolution amending Board Governance Policy

WHEREAS, the Board regularly reviews policies to ensure that they are clear, consistent, 
and current; and

WHEREAS, the Board found area for improvement in the Board Governance Policy;

Now, therefore be it RESOLVED, that that the Board amends the Board Governance 
Policy as presented in the attached document and discussed and revised during the 
Board's meeting of March 21, 2017.

Adopted by the Board of Directors of Hood River County Library District this 21st day of 
March, 2017.

ATTEST:

____________________________ ____________________________
Sara Snyder, President Rachael Fox, Library Director

VII.ii.b. Resolution 2015-16.07, amending Board Governance Policy 61



Janitorial Services Contract 

Hood River County Library District
and 

Clean-All Janitorial

This is a contract for janitorial services at the Hood River branch of the Hood River County Library 
District, 502 State Street, Hood River, OR 97031 (Customer), to be performed by Clean-All Janitorial 
(Contractor).  

1. Effective Date and Duration. This contract shall become effective on April 1, 2015, and 
unless extended or terminated earlier, this contract shall expire on March 31, 2018.

2. Statement of Work. Contractor shall perform the work, as outlined and set forth in the 
Statement of Work. This Statement of Work may be changed from time to time with the 
approval of both parties as indicated on the Statement by signatures and date.

3. Expectations. Contractor must provide all essential cleaning products and equipment. The 
contractor must also have in place an OSHA-compliant MSDS program and provide Customer 
with a copy to be made available on-site. Contractor must keep the program and Customer 
updated if there are changes. Notification of changes must be made immediately.

The District will provide trash bags, toilet paper, soap, paper towels, toilet bowl blocks, 
feminine products, disposable cups, and toilet seat covers.

Contractor is prohibited from sharing keys to the building with assistants or anyone else 
without approval from Customer. Customer reserves the right to reject any employee's 
privilege to work inside or outside the facilities.

4. Consideration. For the first year, Customer shall pay $1,723.00 per month under this 
Contract, which includes any allowable expenses as outlined in the Statement of Work. 
Customer will not pay any amount in excess of the above amount unless specifically agreed to 
by the parties for additional janitorial work. 
  
1. All routine travel and other expenses are included in the total monthly payment and will 

not be charged separately. Any unique expense to be charged to Customer will be agreed 
to prior to the charge.

2. To receive payment, Contractor shall submit monthly invoices to Customer by the 10th of 
each month.

3. Compensation will be reviewed on or by March 31, 2016, and again on or by March 31, 
2017, and amended and agreed as necessary by both parties for the next contract year.

5. Independent Contractor. Contractor is an independent contractor and will perform all 
work required by this contract as an independent contractor. Contractor is responsible to 

Page 1 of 5

VII.iv.a. 2015-18 Janitorial contract with Clean-All Janitorial 62



determine the appropriate means and manner of performing the work. Contractor is 
responsible for all social security, unemployment insurance, vacation, sick leave, or worker’s 
compensation for its own employees. Contractor will be responsible for all federal or state 
taxes which are applicable to any of Contractor's employees' wages under this contract.

6. Subcontracts and Assignment. Contractor is responsible for the work under this contract
and will not subcontract any part of the work to another entity without the express written 
approval of Customer.

7. Termination.  

1. Unilateral or Mutual Agreement. The parties may at any time agree to the termination of
this agreement by written and signed mutually agreeable terms. Either party may give sixty 
days written notice of intent to terminate the contract for no fault.

2. Default of Either Party. Upon either party’s failure to perform the duties as outlined in 
the Contract, and if the failure continues after thirty days appropriate notice of the default 
by the other party, if the default is not corrected, this Contract may be terminated by the 
non-defaulting party and damages may be collected.

3. Contractor No Longer Holds a Required Certificate or License. In the event 
Contractor fails to maintain a required certificate or license for the performance of this 
work, or the hiring of people to maintain the work, Contractor may give Customer notice 
of intent to terminate the contract, or Customer may request clarification of intent to 
terminate the Contract or intent to perform the duties of the Contract. If such assurance 
of license to perform or notice of default is not provided, Customer may give notice of 
immediate termination.

8. Compliance with Applicable Law. Contractor shall comply with all federal, state, and local 
laws, regulations, executive orders, and ordinances applicable to this Contract. Without limiting 
the generality of the foregoing, Contractor expressly agrees to comply with the following laws, 
regulations and executive orders to the extent they are applicable to the Contract:  (a) Titles VI
and VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended; (b) Sections 503 and 504 of the 
Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended; (c) the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, as 
amended; (d) Executive Order 11246, as amended; (e) the Health Insurance Portability and 
Accountability Act of 1996; (f) the Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967, as amended, 
and the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended; (g) the Vietnam Era Veterans’ 
Readjustment Assistance Act of 1974, as amended; (h) ORS Chapter 659, as amended; (i) all 
regulations and administrative rules established pursuant to the foregoing laws; and (j) all other
applicable requirements of federal and state civil rights and rehabilitation statutes, rules and 
regulations. These laws, regulations, and executive orders are incorporated by reference herein 
to the extent that they are applicable to the Contract and required by law to be so 
incorporated. Customer’s performance under the Contract is conditioned upon Contractor’s 
compliance with the provisions of ORS 279B.220, 279B.225, 279B.230, 279B.235, and 279B.270
which are incorporated by reference herein.

Page 2 of 5

VII.iv.a. 2015-18 Janitorial contract with Clean-All Janitorial 63



9. Indemnity. Contractor shall defend, hold harmless, and indemnify Customer, its officers,    
employees, and agents, from all claims, suits, losses, damages, liabilities, costs, expenses or 
actions of any nature whatsoever resulting from the activities of Contractor, its officers, and 
employees, under this contract.

10. Insurance. Contractor shall provide a certificate of liability insurance.

Contractor provided on _______________
Initials _______________

10. Severability. If any term or provision of this Contract is declared to be illegal or in conflict  
with any law, the validity of the remaining terms and provisions shall not be affected and the 
rights and obligations of the parties shall be construed and enforced as if the Contract did not 
contain the particular term or provision held to be invalid.

11. Waiver. The failure of either party to enforce any provision of this contract shall not 
constitute a waiver by that party of that or any other provision.

12. Amendments. The parties may amend this Contract to the extent permitted by applicable 
statutes, administrative rule, and as provided in the solicitation documents, if any.  The terms of 
this contract shall not be waived, altered, modified, supplemented or amended in any manner 
whatsoever, except by written instrument signed by both parties.

13. Notices and Contract Representatives. All notices to the respective parties shall either 
be sent to the following addresses:

Buzzy Nielsen Steve Roberts
Hood River County Library District Clean-All Janitorial
502 State St 1767 12th St #239
Hood River, OR 97031 Hood River, OR 97031
541-387-7062 541-386-5773
buzzy@hoodriverlibrary.org tedene@embarqmail.com

IT IS SO AGREED:

Hood River County Library District Clean-All Janitorial

________________________________ ________________________________
Signature Signature

________________________________ ________________________________
Printed name Printed name

________________________________ ________________________________
Date Date

Page 3 of 5

VII.iv.a. 2015-18 Janitorial contract with Clean-All Janitorial 64



Statement of Work

The contractor will be responsible for cleaning all areas of the building, as well as shutting off all 
designated lights and and ensuring all doors and exits are locked before the end of the shift.

• 2 days per week full building cleaning:
◦ Sweep or vacuum all non-carpet areas
◦ Wet mop all non-carpet areas or auto-scrub
◦ Clean and disinfect all bathroom sinks and toilets
◦ Fill all soap, paper, and feminine product dispensers
◦ Empty all wastebaskets and remove trash from building
◦ Vacuum all carpet areas
◦ Spot clean carpets as needed.
◦ Sift all outside ashtrays of refuse
◦ Ensure all entrances are locked
◦ Clean and sanitize all drinking fountains.
◦ Clean glass doors
◦ Clean elevator floors and walls

• 3 Days per week high traffic area service:
◦ Clean and disinfect all bathrooms
◦ Fill all soap and paper dispensers
◦ Empty all wastebaskets and remove trash from building
◦ Vacuum high traffic areas (defined as stairs, entry areas, and hallways)
◦ Spot clean elevator as needed
◦ Ensure all entrances are locked

• Weekly duties: 
◦ Remove spider webs up to 120"
◦ Clean and sanitize break room
◦ Wash all work and public desks and tables (when cleared by staff)
◦ Emptying garbage cans in the Georgiana Smith Memorial Gardens (May-September)

• Biweekly duties:
◦ Emptying garbage cans in the Georgiana Smith Memorial Gardens (October-April)

• As-needed duties (to be performed during regularly-scheduled cleanings):
◦ Remove broken glass or sharp material from all surfaces
◦ Clean and restore work environments after contractors, maintenance workers, or utility 

workers complete projects and remodeling
◦ Remove excess water from floors during inclement weather
◦ Take all recycling bags/containers from designated stations to the centrally-located pickup 

point and replace each station with empty bags/containers

Page 4 of 5

VII.iv.a. 2015-18 Janitorial contract with Clean-All Janitorial 65



◦ Emptying garbage cans in the Gardens before and after large downtown events including 
but not limited to First Friday (May-October), Independence Day (July 4th), Library end of 
Summer Reading party (August), Hops Fest (September), Harvest Fest (October), and 
Hood River Holidays (December).

• Annual duties:
◦ Extract all carpets
◦ Deep scrub and recoat vinyl floors in staff area
◦ Clean all windows inside and out, excluding the tall north windows in the atrium area.

Aside from the annual duties, the requirements stated above are to serve as guidelines. The actual 
requirements shall be performed as frequently as necessary to maintain the building in a clean and 
sanitary condition.

Page 5 of 5

VII.iv.a. 2015-18 Janitorial contract with Clean-All Janitorial 66



Janitorial Services Contract
between Hood River County Library District and Clean-All

Janitorial
2017-18 addendum

This addendum updates the janitorial contract between Hood River County Library District 
(Customer) and Clean-All Janitorial (Contractor) for the period of April 1, 2017, to March 31, 
2018.

Contractor shall perform the work, as outlined in the Updated Statement of Work. For the 
addendum period, Customer shall pay $1,823.00 per month under the considerations agreed 
to in the original contract.

IT IS SO AGREED:

Hood River County Library District Clean-All Janitorial

________________________________ ________________________________
Signature Signature

________________________________ ________________________________
Printed name Printed name

________________________________ ________________________________
Date Date

Updated Statement of Work
(Red text are changes from the previous Statement of Work)

Hood River Library
Contractor will be responsible for cleaning all areas of the Hood River Library (502 State St., 
Hood River, OR) as well as shutting off all designated lights and ensuring all doors and exits 
are locked before the end of the shift.

• 5 days per week high traffic area service:
◦ Clean and sanitize all bathroom floors, counters, sinks, toilets and changing tables.
◦ Clean and sanitize all drinking fountains.
◦ Fill all soap, paper, and feminine product dispensers.
◦ Empty all wastebaskets and remove trash from building.
◦ Clean glass doors

Page 1 of 3

VII.iv.b. 2017-18 Addendum to janitorial contract 67



◦ Sanitize and wipe down all public area counters, tables, end tables, and meeting 
room tables.

◦ Spot clean elevator as needed.
◦ Ensure all entrances and marked doors are locked and that non-emergency lights 

are off.
◦ Wet mop or scrub all non-carpet areas in public area (October-April)

• 3 days per week:
◦ Vacuum or sweep high traffic areas carpet and non-carpet (defined as stairs, entry 

areas, and hallways).

• 2 days per week full building cleaning:
◦ Sweep or vacuum all non-carpet areas.
◦ Vacuum all carpet areas.
◦ Spot clean carpets as needed.
◦ Sift all outside ashtrays of refuse
◦ Clean elevator floors and walls.
◦ Empty garbage cans in the Georgiana Smith Memorial Gardens (May-September).
◦ Wet mop or scrub all non-carpet areas (Public area: May-September, Staff area: 

year round)

• Weekly duties: 
◦ Remove spider webs up to 10'.
◦ Wet mop or scrub break room floor.
◦ Wipe and sanitize all staff area tables and computer desks.
◦ Empty blue recycle bins into large blue bin in staff area.

• Twice monthly duties:
◦ Empty garbage cans in the Georgiana Smith Memorial Gardens (October-April)

• As-needed duties (to be performed during regularly-scheduled cleanings):
◦ Remove broken glass or sharp material from all surfaces.
◦ Clean and restore work environments after contractors, maintenance workers, or 

utility workers complete projects and remodeling.
◦ Remove excess water from floors during inclement weather.
◦ Take all recycling bags/containers from designated stations to the centrally-located 

pickup point and replace each station with empty bags/containers.
◦ Emptying garbage cans in the Gardens before and after large downtown events 

including but not limited to Blossom Time (spring), First Friday (May-October), 
Independence Day (July 4), Library end of Summer Reading party (end of 
summer), Hops Fest (September), Harvest Fest (October), and Hood River 
Holidays (December).

• Annual duties:
◦ Extract all carpets (September).
◦ Deep scrub and recoat vinyl floors in staff area. (July)

Page 2 of 3

VII.iv.b. 2017-18 Addendum to janitorial contract 68



◦ Clean all windows inside and out, excluding the tall north windows in the atrium 
area (May).

Aside from the annual duties, the requirements stated above are to serve as guidelines. The 
actual requirements shall be performed as frequently as necessary to maintain the building in 
a clean and sanitary condition.

Page 3 of 3

VII.iv.b. 2017-18 Addendum to janitorial contract 69



Library Director Evaluation Policy

The Board of Directors of the Hood River County Library District has one 
senior management staff position, Library Director. The Library Director 
reports to the Board of Directors  and is responsible for the day-to-day 
operations of the District. The Board of Directors has the authority and 
responsibility to administer the annual evaluation process of the Library 
Director. 

Frequency
The District will evaluate the Library Director’s performance as it relates to the duties in the 
job description and goals established for the District and Director at the six month hiring 
anniversary, again at twelve months, and annually thereafter. In addition to evaluating 
performance, the review will include opportunity to create annual goals and identify training 
needs for the Library Director. The annual evaluation timeline shall be created by the Board 
President and approved by the Board of Directors. 
 

Procedure
The Board of Directors shall complete the Library Director evaluation using the following 
procedures:
 

1. The Board of Directors shall establish the evaluation and criteria in consultation with 
the Library Director. Any changes to the criteria or goals shall become effective after 
mutual agreement between the Board and the Library Director.

2. The Library Director shall complete a self evaluation form and submit it to the Board.
3. District staff shall be requested to supply written input on approved evaluation forms, 

which shall allow for standard ratings and space for written comments.
4. The overall results of a feedback survey from community members selected by the 

Board of Directors may be used as a source of input in the evaluation process.
5. Board members shall complete individual evaluations, on forms with standard ratings 

and space for written comments, following receipt of evaluations from the Library 
Director, District staff, and community members.

6. The input from the Board, staff, Library Director, and community evaluations, as well as
the forms themselves, shall be compiled by the Board President.

7. The final draft of the evaluation is then presented to the Library Director. Scored areas 
will be averaged as appropriate. The written statements of the evaluations shall be 
included. 

8. The Library Director shall have one week to review the final draft of the evaluation and 
develop written comments in response. These comments shall be submitted first to the
Board of Directors with the proposed evaluation.

9. The evaluation shall at all times be reviewed in executive session meetings unless the 
Library Director requests that it be conducted in public.

10.The President will meet with the Library Director to review the evaluation, develop 
goals, and identify training needs to be included in the final evaluation document.

11. The Board of Directors shall review and accept or reject the evaluation or any portion 

VII.vi.a. Library Director Evaluation Policy 70



Library Director Evaluation Policy, p.2

thereof as compiled by the President. At this time, the Board of Directors shall 
determine the amount of salary increase (if any) in the Library Director’s compensation 
to be awarded in the next fiscal year (July 1). The salary deliberations shall be held in 
public session. 

12.The evaluation, once approved by the Board of Directors, is then presented to the 
Library Director for his/her files and the personnel file. The evaluation is subject to 
disclosure under public records laws. 

Approved by the Board of Directors, June 19, 2012

VII.vi.a. Library Director Evaluation Policy 71



Library Director Evaluation
Board Questions

May 2015

Scoring:
• 5 – Consistently exceeds expectations
• 4 – Often exceeds expectations
• 3 – Meets expectations
• 2 – Often below expectations
• 1 – Consistently below expectations

1. Please look at the Library Director's (LD) job contract and description. How successful 
has the LD been in performing all duties outlined? How well has the LD shown 
commitment and leadership to the organization?
1. Job description
2. Commitment to the organization
3. Leadership

Explain:

2. How do you feel the LD has done at administering Board policies, making policy 
recommendations to the Board, and providing executive support and information to the
Board? 
1. Administering Board policy
2. Providing executive support and information
3. Meeting deadlines
4. Consistent quality of work
5. Communication skills

Explain:

3. How well has the LD progressed in meeting goals established for the 2012- 2016 
strategic plan?
1. Promoting the library to the community
2. Increasing outreach to the Hispanic community
3. Increasing outreach to the Odell community
4. Creating a young adult area
5. Creating a technology plan
6. Bringing the collection up to date

Explain:

VII.vi.b. Board of Directors evaluation questions 72



4. How successful has the LD been in staying within the District's financial budget and 
policies, and administering the District's funds? 
1. Budget
2. Financial policies
3. Administering District funds
4. Administering grants

Explain:

5. How has the LD done at overseeing the maintenance of the collection?
1. Developing the collection
2. Collection maintenance
3. Classifying and cataloging materials
4. Developing the collection for a diverse citizenry
5. Increasing audiovisual materials
6. Electronic materials

Explain:

6. How has the Director done at supervising personnel?
1. Hiring personnel
2. Training personnel
3. Increasing bilingual capacity on staff
4. Recruiting, training, and supervising volunteers
5. Supervising personnel
6. Supervising volunteers
7. Hearing grievances
8. Administering disciplinary action as needed

Explain:

7. How effectively has the LD provided appropriate and properly-maintained facilities, 
technology, and equipment to serve patrons?
1. Ensuring safety: 
2. Providing appropriate and up-to-date technology: 
3. Maintaining the facilities:
4. Providing and maintaining other necessary equipment:
5. Ensuring proper upkeep of outdoor areas:

Explain:

8. How successful has the LD been at championing community and state partnerships for
the operation and services provided now and for the future? 
1. Hood River County Library Foundation
2. Friends of the Hood River County Library

VII.vi.b. Board of Directors evaluation questions 73



3. Businesses
4. Schools
5. Oregon Library Association
6. Special Districts Association of Oregon
7. Clubs/organizations

Explain:

9. How successful has the Director been in providing appropriate library services and 
technology to the community? 
1. Provide programs, services, and activities
2. Staffing levels
3. Operational hours
4. Handling patron requests and complaints
5. Provide reference and information services
6. Sage Library System
7. Internet
8. Library programming trends
9. Early childhood literacy

Explain:

10.Overall, how do you feel the LD has done in fulfilling his job duties?

Explain:

VII.vi.b. Board of Directors evaluation questions 74



Library Director Evaluation
Community Questions

May 2015

Scoring:
• 5 – Consistently exceeds expectations
• 4 – Often exceeds expectations
• 3 – Meets expectations
• 2 – Often below expectations
• 1 – Consistently below expectations

1. How well do you feel the Library Director (LD) serves as an effective spokesperson for 
the Library District? 
1. Demonstrates commitment to the organization
2. Acts as an effective spokesperson
3. Represents programs and services accurately
4. Communicates the Library District's point of view
5. Is Professional and courteous
6. Has Knowledge of community needs

Explain:

2. How successful has the LD been in developing library services that represent the 
needs and wants of the community?
1. Develops appropriate library services
2. Meets the needs of a diverse community
3. Develops well-received public programs
4. Shows creativity
5. Takes initiative

Explain:

3. How well does the LD present himself to the community? 
1. Participates in meetings/events
2. Listens and responds appropriately
3. Is on time and prepared
4. Verbal communication
5. Written communication
6. Provides clear information
7. Accepts feedback

Explain:

VII.vi.c. Community member evaluation questions 75



4. How successful has the LD been at championing community involvement for the 
operation and services provided now and for the future? 
1. Hood River County Library Foundation
2. Friends of the Hood River County Library
3. Businesses
4. Schools
5. Organizations/clubs

Explain:

5. How successful has the LD been in providing appropriate library services to the 
community?  
1. Developing the collection
2. Providing programs, services, and activities
3. Staffing levels
4. Operational hours
5. Handling patron requests and complaints
6. Children's programming

Explain:

6. How successful has the LD been at communicating library services to the community? 
1. Public events
2. Electronic resources
3. Free public Internet
4. Early childhood services
5. Adult services
6. Teen services
7. Reaching out to different demographics
8. Reference and information services

Explain:

7. Overall, how do you feel the LD has done in creating a robust public library for our 
community? 

Explain:

VII.vi.c. Community member evaluation questions 76



Library Director Evaluation
Library Director questions

May 2015

Scoring:
• 5 – Consistently exceeds expectations
• 4 – Often exceeds expectations
• 3 – Meets expectations
• 2 – Often below expectations
• 1 – Consistently below expectations

1. Please look at your job contract and description. How successful have you been in 
performing all duties outlined? How well have you shown commitment and leadership to 
the organization?
1. Job description
2. Commitment to the organization
3. Leadership: 

Explain:

2. How do you feel you have done at administering Board policies, making policy 
recommendations to the Board, and providing executive support and information to the 
Board?
1. Administering board policies: 
2. Providing executive support and information
3. Meeting deadlines
4. Consistent quality of work 
5. Communication Skills

Explain:

3. How well have you progressed in meeting goals established for the 2012-2016 strategic 
plan?
1. Promoting the library to the community
2. Increasing outreach to the Latino community
3. Increasing outreach to the Odell community
4. Creating a young adult area
5. Creating a technology plan
6. Bringing the collection up to date

Explain:

VII.vi.d. Library Director evaluation questions 77



4. How successful have you been in staying within the District's financial budget and 
policies, and administering the District's funds?
1. Budget
2. Financial policies
3. Administering district funds
4. Administering grants

Explain:

5. How have you done at overseeing the maintenance of the collection?
1. Collection maintenance 
2. Developing the collection 
3. Classifying and cataloging materials
4. Developing collection for a diverse citizenry
5. Increasing audiovisual material
6. Electronic resources: 

Explain:

6. How have you done at supervising personnel?
1. Hiring personnel
2. Training personnel
3. Increasing bilingual capacity on staff
4. Recruiting, training, and supervising volunteers
5. Supervising personnel
6. Hearing grievances
7. Administering disciplinary action as needed

Explain:

7. How effectively have you provided appropriate and properly-maintained facilities, 
technology, and equipment to serve patrons?
1. Ensuring safety
2. Providing appropriate and up-to-date technology
3. Maintaining the facilities
4. Providing and maintaining other necessary equipment
5. Ensuring proper upkeep of outdoor areas

Explain:

8. How successful have you been at championing community and state partnerships for the
operation and services provided now and for the future?
1. Hood River County Library Foundation
2. Friends of the Hood River County Library
3. Businesses

VII.vi.d. Library Director evaluation questions 78



4. Schools
5. Oregon Library Association
6. Special District Association of Oregon
7. Clubs/organizations

Explain:

9. How successful have you been in providing appropriate library services and technology 
to the community?
1. Providing programs, services, and activities: 
2. Staffing levels
3. Operational hours
4. Handling patron requests and complaints
5. Providing reference and information services
6. Sage Library System
7. Public Internet
8. Library Programming Trends 
9. Early childhood literacy

Explain:

10. Overall, how do you feel you have done in fulfilling your job duties?

Explain:

VII.vi.d. Library Director evaluation questions 79



Library Director Evaluation
Staff Questions

May 2015

Scoring:
• 5 – Consistently exceeds expectations
• 4 – Often exceeds expectations
• 3 – Meets expectations
• 2 – Often below expectations
• 1 – Consistently below expectations

1. How well do you feel the Library Director (LD) has demonstrated his leadership 
qualities? 
1. Sensitivity and awareness in relating to people
2. Fosters an environment that stimulates enthusiasm, initiative, and creativity
3. Sets example for integrity, openness, cooperation, and commitment
4. Encourages teamwork and a strong work ethic among staff
5. Maintains and environment of trust and respect

Explain:

2. How well do you feel the LD works with you and the rest of the library staff? 
1. Encourages and supports professional development
2. Establishes purposeful goals and helps staff meet them
3. Works to continually improve performance of staff
4. Is effective in planning, organizing, and controlling the work of staff
5. Delegates effectively
6. Holds staff responsible for assignments and duties
7. Makes appropriate personnel recommendations and decisions

Explain:

3. How well do you feel the LD communicates with the library staff? 
1. Verbal communication
2. Written communication
3. Provides clear information
4. Listens and responds appropriately
5. Effectively conducts and participates in meetings
6. Keeps staff informed

Explain:

VII.vi.e. Staff evaluation questions 80



4. How effective is the LD at problem solving? 
1. Identifies problems
2. Develops alternate solutions
3. Implements practical, effective, and innovative solutions
4. Responds appropriately to new and different situations
5. Overcomes resistance to change
6. Seeks advice in dealing with problems
7. Demonstrates effective conflict resolution skills

Explain:

5. How is the LD's attitude and level of cooperation? 
1. Committed to organizational goals
2. Demonstrates helpful manner to staff
3. Is approachable
4. Respects views of others
5. Projects a positive outlook
6. Adjusts to change and manages stress
7. Exhibits responsible and mature management behavior
8. Assumes responsibilities for decisions and actions

Explain:

6. How well do you feel the LD demonstrates skills and knowledge of the job? 
1. Demonstrates necessary skills
2. Has knowledge expected for a Library Director
3. Articulates knowledge to staff
4. Trains staff in necessary skills

Explain:

7. Within the District's budgetary limits, how successful has the LD been in providing 
appropriate library services to the community? 
1. Planing and developing collections
2. Providing programs, services, and activities
3. Promoting/marketing resources to patrons
4. Staffing levels
5. Operational hours
6. Handling patron requests and complaints
7. Communicating with library users
8. Meeting the needs of patrons
9. Overall treatment of patrons
10. Interaction with the community

Explain:

VII.vi.e. Staff evaluation questions 81



8. How successful has the LD been at staying current with library and information 
services and technology, including the integrated library system, electronic resources 
and Internet? 
1. Sage Library System
2. Electronic resources
3. Internet
4. Library programming trends
5. Early childhood literacy

Explain:

9. Overall, how do you feel the LD has done in fulfilling his job duties while working with 
you and other staff?

Explain:
 

VII.vi.e. Staff evaluation questions 82


	Feb
	Library Card Policy
	Board Governance Policy
	I. Membership
	II. Ethics
	III. Officers
	
	IV. Responsibilities
	V. Meetings
	VI. Committees
	VII. Parliamentary Authority
	VIII. Amendments
	Library Director Evaluation Policy



